

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. **Hennepin county; officers' salaries.** In the county of Hennepin, the salaries of all non elected county officials shall be set and prescribed by the board of county commissioners of said county. Provided, however, in no event shall any salary be set for such officials which is an amount less than that prescribed by law or in effect on the effective date of this act.

Sec. 2. This act takes effect when approved by the governing body of the county of Hennepin and upon compliance with the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 645.021.

Approved May 31, 1967.

---

EXTRA SESSION

CHAPTER 28—S. F. No. 40

[Coded in Part]

*An act relating to the state board of registration for architects, engineers, and land surveyors; amending Minnesota Statutes 1965, Sections 326.02, Subdivision 5; 326.03; 326.08; 326.10, Subdivisions 1, 4, 5, and by adding a subdivision; 326.11, Subdivision 1; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1965, Section 326.10, Subdivisions 3 and 6.*

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1965, Section 326.02, Subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. **Architects, engineers and surveyors; regulation; limitation.** The provisions of sections 326.02 to 326.16 shall not apply to the preparation of plans and specifications for the erection, enlargement, or alteration of any building or other structure by any person, for his, or his lessee's exclusive occupancy or use, unless such occupancy or use involves the public health or safety or the health or safety of the employees of said person, or his lessee; nor shall they apply to the preparation of plans and specifications for any building, structure, or work, which is not public as defined in section 326.03, the total cost of which does not exceed \$10,000; nor shall they apply to the preparation of plans and specifications for any single or two family dwelling; nor to any farm building or accessory thereto; *of the buildings listed in section 326.03, subdi-*

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.**

vision 2, nor to any detailed or shop plans required to be furnished by a contractor to a registered engineer or architect, nor to any standardized manufactured product, nor to any construction superintendent supervising the execution of work designed by an architect or engineer registered in accordance with section 326.03.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1965, Section 326.03, is amended to read:

**326.03 Registration required.** *Subdivision 1.* No person, except an architect, engineer or land surveyor, registered as provided for in sections 326.02 to 326.15 shall practice architecture, professional engineering, or land surveying, respectively, in the preparation of plans, specifications, report, plats or other engineering or architectural, engineering, or land surveying documents, or in the supervision observation of architectural, engineering, or land surveying work, for any public work or public improvement in this state, ~~excepting any public work or public improvement the total cost of which does not exceed \$2,000; provided that plans and specifications for such work or improvement affecting water supply or waste disposal are approved by the appropriate state agency. Public work or public improvement is defined to mean work or improvement the cost of which is to be paid in whole or in part from public funds projects.~~

*Subd. 2.* Nothing contained in sections 326.02 to 326.16 shall prevent persons from advertising and performing services such as consultation, investigation, or evaluation in connection with, or from making plans and specifications for, or from supervising, the erection, enlargement, or alteration of any of the following buildings:

(a) *Dwellings for single families, and outbuildings in connection therewith, such as barns and private garages;*

(b) *Two family dwellings;*

(c) *Any farm building or accessory thereto;*

(d) *Temporary buildings or sheds used exclusively for construction purposes, not exceeding two stories in height, and not used for living quarters;*

(e) *Any public work or public improvement done by a public body in this state, the cost of which does not exceed \$2,000, provided that plans and specifications for such work or improvement affecting water supply or waste disposal are approved by the appropriate state agency; or*

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.**

(f) *Any building, structure, or work, the total cost of which does not exceed \$30,000.*

*Subd. 3.* No plat, map, or drawing of any survey or subdivision of lands required by law to be filed or recorded with the register of deeds or registered with the registrar of titles of any county, shall be filed, recorded, or registered therein unless there shall be endorsed thereon a certificate *certification* by a registered land surveyor.

*Subd. 4.* The provisions hereof shall not apply to any person holding an elective office when in discharging the duties thereof such person is required to do work or perform service of the character of work or service usually done or performed by an architect, engineer, or land surveyor.

*Subd. 5.* *The provisions of sections 326.02 to 326.16 shall not apply to inspection and service work done by employees of insurance companies, their agents, or insurance rating bureaus.*

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1965, Section 326.08, is amended to read:

**326.08 Fees, disposal of; pay of board members; bonds.** All fees and other moneys accruing from the operation of sections 326.02 to 326.15 shall be paid to the board and shall be used for the purposes of sections 326.02 to ~~326.15~~ *326.161 and 326.53*. The expenses of the board shall be paid by voucher made by the secretary-treasurer and approved by the chairman. Each member of the board shall receive such ~~compensation as the board may direct; not to exceed \$10 per day for time spent in attending meetings of the board~~ *\$35 for each day or portion thereof that he attends a meeting of the board or is otherwise engaged in performing official business of the board*. The members of the board shall be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred in travel to and from meetings and for expenditures for hotel bills, meals, stationery, postage, printing, typewriting, and the like necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties under sections 326.02 to ~~326.15~~ *326.161 and 326.53*.

*Any member of the board, the executive secretary of the board, or the attorney for the board may be authorized by the board to attend any architectural, engineering, or land surveying conference or meeting held outside of this state, the major purpose of which is the consideration of problems directly associated with the registration of architects, professional engineers, or land surveyors. In addition to any subsistence and travel allowance prescribed by law for travel outside of the state, a member of the board who attends such an*

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

*architectural, engineering, or land surveying conference or meeting pursuant to authorization by the board shall receive \$35 for each day or portion thereof he attends the conference or meeting or travels to or from the conference or meeting.*

The secretary-treasurer of the board shall give a surety bond satisfactory to the state treasurer, conditioned upon the faithful performance of his duties. The premium on the bond shall be regarded as a proper and necessary expense of the board.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1965, Section 326.10, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

**326.10 Certificates of registration.** Subdivision 1. **Issuance.** The board shall on application therefor on a prescribed form, and the payment of a fee of \$15 for an architect, or \$15 for an engineer, issue a certificate of registration as an architect or engineer, and, on the payment of a fee of \$10, issue a certificate of registration as a *an architect, engineer, or land surveyor*. A separate fee shall be paid for each profession registered.

(1) To any person over 25 years of age, who is a citizen of the United States or Canada, or who has made declaration of his intention to become a citizen of the United States; who speaks and writes the English language; who is of good moral character and repute, and has been actively engaged for eight or more years in architectural or engineering work, or engaged for six or more years in *land surveying work*. The character of such work shall be satisfactory to the board. Each scholastic year of teaching or of study satisfactorily completed; of architecture, ~~engineering, or land surveying~~ in a school or college of architecture or ~~engineering~~ accredited by the national architectural accrediting board ~~or~~, *or for each scholastic year of teaching or of study satisfactorily completed of engineering in an engineering curriculum accredited by the engineers' council for professional development, or for the land surveyor each scholastic year of teaching or of study satisfactorily completed in an engineering and land surveying curriculum accredited by the engineers' council for professional development*, shall be considered as equivalent to one year of such active engagement, provided, however, that three years of actual experience of a standard satisfactory to the board shall be required in addition to school attendance.

An honorably discharged veteran of World War I or World War II shall be given credit for such experience or education gained in the armed services of the United States as meets the standards fixed by the board.

(2) To any person who holds a like unexpired certificate

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.**

of registration issued to him by proper authority in the District of Columbia, in any state or territory of the United States, or in any province of Canada, in which the requirements for registration of architects, engineers, or land surveyors are equal to those fixed by the board and by the laws of this state, and in which similar privileges are extended to the holders of certificates of registration issued by this state. The board may require such person to submit a certificate of his technical qualification from the National Council of Architectural Registration Boards in the case of an architect, and from the National Council of State Boards of Engineering Examiners in the case of an engineer.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1965, Section 326.10, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Expiration.** Certificates of registration shall expire on the last day of the calendar year for which they are issued and shall become invalid on that date unless renewed. It shall be the duty of the secretary-treasurer of the board to notify, by mail, every person registered of the date of the expiration of his certificate and the amount of fee required for its renewal for one year; such notice shall be mailed to the registrant at his address as shown on the records of the board at least one month in advance of the date of the expiration of the certificate. Renewal may be effected ~~at any time during the month of~~ *on or before December 31 of each year* by the payment of a fee of not to exceed \$15 ~~for an architect or an engineer, and not to exceed \$10 for a land surveyor for each profession.~~

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1965, Section 326.10, Subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. **Delayed renewal fee.** The failure on the part of any registrant to renew his certificate annually ~~in the month of December before December 31~~ shall not deprive such person of his right of renewal thereafter, but the ~~fees~~ *fee* to be paid for the ~~late~~ renewal of the certificate ~~after the succeeding first day of January~~ shall be \$3 ~~for an architect, \$3 for an engineer, and \$3 for a land surveyor for each profession~~ in addition to the renewal fee for each profession.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1965, Section 326.10, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 7. **Architect-in-training; engineer-in-training; land surveyor-in-training.** (1) *Any applicant for certification as an architect-in-training who is a graduate with a bachelor of architecture degree from an accredited school or college of architecture or who*

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.**

*has had equivalent education or experience or a combination thereof of a grade and character acceptable to the board shall receive from the board, upon passing an examination in fundamental architectural subjects, a certificate stating that he has passed such examination and that his name has been recorded as an architect-in-training.*

(2) *Any applicant for certification as an engineer-in-training who is a graduate with a bachelor of engineering degree from a school or college having an accredited engineering curriculum or who has had equivalent education or experience or a combination thereof of a grade and character acceptable to the board shall receive from the board, upon passing an examination in fundamental engineering subjects, a certificate stating that he has passed such examination and that his name has been recorded as an engineer-in-training.*

(3) *Any applicant for certification as a land surveyor-in-training who has had a minimum of four years of qualifying experience of a character satisfactory to the board, of which a formal education may constitute a part thereof, shall receive from the board, upon passing a written examination on the fundamentals of mathematics and the basic principles of land surveying, a certificate stating that he has passed such examination and that his name has been recorded as a land surveyor-in-training.*

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 1965, Section 326.11, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

**326.11 Certificates of registration, revocation, re-issue, duplicates.** Subdivision 1. **Revocation.** The board shall have the power to revoke or suspend as hereinafter provided, the certificate of registration of any architect, engineer, or land surveyor, who is found guilty by the board of any fraud or deceit in obtaining a certificate of registration, or of attaching his seal or signature to any plan, specification, report, plat, or other ~~engineering or architectural, engineering, or land surveying~~ document not prepared by him or under his direct supervision, or of gross negligence, incompetency, or misconduct in the practice of architecture, engineering, or land surveying, or upon conviction of any violation of sections 326.02 to 326.16 or amendments thereof, or of any crime involving moral turpitude or upon adjudication of insanity or incompetency, and in the case of such conviction or adjudication, such revocation or suspension may be made by the board on its own motion on the filing with its secretary-treasurer of a copy of the minutes of such conviction and judgment or adjudication, duly certified by the clerk in whose custody they are, the same to be conclusive evidence of such conviction or adjudication.

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

Sec. 9. **Repealer.** *Minnesota Statutes 1965, Section 326.10, Subdivisions 3 and 6, are repealed.*

Sec. 10. **Effective date.** *This act shall take effect on August 1, 1967.*

Approved May 31, 1967.

---

EXTRA SESSION  
CHAPTER 29—S. F. No. 42  
[Not Coded]

*An act relating to courts in Anoka county except the district and probate courts; creating a municipal court and a conciliation court of Anoka county.*

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. **Anoka county municipal and conciliation court; establishment; jurisdiction; powers; appeals.** Subdivision 1. **Establishment.** There is hereby created a municipal court of Anoka county with the jurisdiction and powers hereinafter stated.

Subd. 2. **Court of record.** The court is a court of record with a clerk and a seal.

Subd. 3. **Powers of court.** Except as otherwise provided in this act, the court has all the powers of the district courts of this state. It may issue all civil and criminal process necessary or proper to enforce and effectuate its jurisdiction and determinations.

Subd. 4. **Civil jurisdiction.** Excepting causes involving title to real estate, the court has jurisdiction to hear, try and determine civil actions at law in which the amount in controversy does not exceed the sum of \$5,000 exclusive of interest and costs.

Subd. 5. **Forcible entry and unlawful detainer.** Whether or not the title to real estate is involved, the court has jurisdiction of actions of forcible entry and unlawful detainer involving land located wholly or in part within Anoka county.

Subd. 6. **Criminal jurisdiction.** (a) The court has jurisdiction to hear, try and determine any charge of violation of:

(1) A criminal law of this state constituting a misdemeanor committed within the county of Anoka.

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout:**